

Getting to Know...

The Sims FreePlay

for A Level AQA Media Two

Second Edition, January 2024

zigzageducation.co.uk

POD 12531

Publish your own work... Write to a brief... Register at **publishmenow.co.uk**

Tollow us on X (Twitter) @ZigZagMediaFilm

Contents

Product Support from ZigZag Education	ii
Terms and Conditions of Use	iii
Teacher's Introduction	1
What Should I Know?	2
Getting to Know The Sims FreePlay	3
The Sims audience breakdown and cultural legacy	3
2. A history of mobile games – the reborn medium (The Sims FreePlay)	
3. What makes The Sims unique?	6
4. Production, distribution and marketing of The Sims FreePlay	8
5. The lucrative market of casual gaming (The Sims FreePlay)	10
6. Microtransactions and DLCs – the ethical issues surrounding modern game design (The Sims FreePlay)	12
7. Pocket-sized universe – postmodernism and representation of reality in The Sims FreePlay	13
8. Why do people play video games?	15
9. How are video games made?	
Show What You Know	19
Answers	20

Teacher's Introduction

This resource has been written for the AQA Media Studies A Level specification (7572), with a specific focus on Media Two: In Depth Study: Video Games: The Sims FreePlay.

As a 'Getting to Know' pack, this resource has been constructed to actively engage students with the source material through a range of stimulating, focused and entertaining magazine-style articles exploring different topics across the media frameworks and theories. Discussion tasks are included throughout to recap knowledge. At the end of the resource, we have included a range of more challenging essay-style questions for students to test their learning.

The structure of the pack is as follows:

- 1. What Should I Know? a brief overview of the key facts/information about the close study product.
- 2. Getting to Know... nine articles on a variety of topics. In these articles, we have tried to focus on the more niche aspects of the product that may not have been covered by textbooks, to broaden students' understanding.
- Show What You Know four essay-style questions on the close study products complete with an answer section.

Our aim with this resource is to provide variety for those students who may feel overloaded by textbooks and other learning materials with a solely academic writing style. The blend of informative content and entertaining presentation style will not only help to strengthen a student's knowledge of the product, but also help to foster a genuine interest in it.

January 2024

Second Edition, January 2024

Changes have been made to the resource to account for the changes made to the set products, for assessment from 2024.

What Should I Know?

The Sims FreePlay (2011)

Background information

- Developed by Maxis, Firemonkey Studios, Blue To the Intertainment, and
- Published by Electronic Arts (EA), available for do, aload on the App Store and
- The game has been continually in the source release in order to retain player including an AR (augment really) runction added in late 2018.

Plot and ga 19 v c prview

- Social state of the Social
- The game features **microtransactions** that allow the user to purchase virtual unlockable items however, this industry practice has been criticised.

Release information

- At the time of writing, the game has a 4 star rating on Google Play from a tot on the App Store it has a 4.4 star rating from 23,666 ratings – indicating a poplatforms but a much larger market share on Android devices compared to A
- Released as a **free-to-play** version with less content than the full PC games.
- Original released on 15th December 2011 for Android, iOS (Apple operating s The Windows Phone version was discontinued as the operating system was s





INSPECTION COPY



Getting to Know... The Sims F

1. The Sims audience breakdown and cultural legal

Audiences

The Sims is one of the most recognisable go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have emerged in the last couple of decades, and go franchises to have an impact on pop culture, instead of just a small go franchise to have a really sweeping broad audience at good go, who plays The Sims, and why?

Demographics

A standout figure from the overall gender split of the whole Sims series is the fact towards women, and EA itself has estimated that women make up about 65% of i estimation for gaming in general, as a hobby, is that there is a pretty even split 50 so The Sims' demo is notable because of that imbalance. It's hard to find precise of FreePlay because of the smaller scale, but it would be logical to assume that be there's a similar division along gender grouping.

In terms of age, The Sims has a remarkably broad audience grouping. Thanks to the lack of adult content, controversy, sex or violence, the games are all accessible and suitable for children and young teens as well as still being engaging for older categories.

With FreePlay specifically, we can see that the lemographic split between iOS and skewed towards the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter, which can be seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has and the latter has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas it only has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas has a seen in how the app has over five million whereas has a seen in how the app has over

Psychographics

EA hasn't really released the psychographics of its target audience, so we're going to have to go off what we know. For a start, as a mobile game, the primary target audience is going to likely have less of a serious, **active** interest in gaming and more of a casual, **passive** interest, compared to the more dedicated audience of the full PC/console games.

A want for light-hearted entertainment as opposed to more it tense, story-driven narrative games is likely to be another key fact on the Sims has no set story, and your own actions create the nor at least happen within the world; there are no pre-recorded to the game and The Sims as a franchise (being able to the pool, giving Sims 'Whale Rage' in the medieval and sales indicates the core audience are not looking for intensely entered and gameplay involving violence or distressing and disturbing themes.

Equally, a desire to create and control, instead of following along with a set struct reason why people play The Sims FreePlay instead of a more conventional mobile

NSPECTION COPY

De

a g

cha

ge

gr

ne

Ac

a

er

ar

ar



with Hall's reception theory in mind, an audience that takes a preferred reading to that enjoys the relative lack of structure and the more free-from nature of the gar reading might be from players who value a solid story to relate with and be guide

Industry impact

Often when a style of media or genre becomes extraordinarily popular really fast, oversaturation of the market by copycat texts trying f(x, y) and the wave of popular really happened with The Sims, and the f(x) been few direct competitor

The only really similar game is also become hugely popular is Animal Crossi for its consoler and it is e, but there are major differences between the two cartoonish ic, the world is populated with talking animals instead of people the world in a godlike controlling role.

The franchise also has a strong dedicated **fandom**. That iconic green diamond hovering over someone's head has been a common Halloween or New Year's Eve costume because The Sims is so easily recognised and so well beloved. As Jenkins puts forward, costumes and merchandise of a certain media franchise allow people to actively display their interests and connect with people via this shared fandom, which, in this specific case, is The Sims. But it's important to remember that this fandom has been cultivated by the entire series, not just FreePlay, which is a relatively minor addition to the overall canon.

Fano join

> devo activ

Discussion questions

- What might be a difference in psychographics be provers of The Sims Free of the full The Sims 4 game for PC and a sc es?
- 2) What is a notable oddity about the company of the Sims franchise?
- Why might the content of ary affect its commercial success?



79 INSPECTION COPY

COPYRIGHT PROTECTED



2. A history of mobile games — the reborn medium

I need you to imagine you are wading back along the winding, raging river of time until you arrive at the far distant shores of the year 2008. Among the mist and the fog of eternity stands a colossal monolith like one of the giant rocks of Stoneheng You see the curved rectangular form, the glimmering reflection of the glass, and a round indent emblazoned with the outline of a square Concludely, you press the enticing symbol. A blaze of light erupts, moment and black in gyou. But as your significant square in the genesis of it all — Since App Store.

OK, so maybe I've overdrand a that Apple App Store was seed to basis for the idea of 'mobile gaming' as we know it today. If you to be technical, phones did have games before the App Store, such as the land a strong phone you could throw off a bridge and it wouldn't even scratch), but the A Store changed how they were made, marketed and used. Instead of being built in the phone from the factory, Apple and other third-party developers could design new games and post them for sale through the marketplace.

However, the novelty of playing a game on your phone soon wore off and sudden giving a damn about Angry Birds or Doodlejump. It was a bit of fun, but not enough time on a repeat basis – not like a console or PC game. The games were fun enough mechanics and storytelling that they really weren't engaging for audiences beyond

Now, however, the format is back – it has been remade in a new form, more populate USA alone the number of people playing mobile games has shot up from approx 164 million in 2015, and this upward growth has only continued since (source statista.com/statistics/234635/number-of-mobile-gamers-forecast/).

Why is mobile gaming more popular than ever before?

For one thing, phones have come and the come advanced processors, more advanced processors, more advanced graphics cards, and, most importantly, shigher definition that the company is generations.

Phone game always hampered by the fact that, compared to a PC or TV mosmall to be truly competitive in terms of usability. A game such as Candy Crush do does it need a fancy graphics processor – but something like Fortnite, that you can probably wouldn't translate well onto a smaller scale.

The major change in recent years, however, has been major existing gaming france format. Pokémon Go was the first big hitter, incorporating augmented reality into present battle royale games, PUBG and Fortnite, have also brought the masses bathe dismay of every secondary school teacher who was already sick of their stude Fortnite instead of working. These recognisable and established brand names, co reserves of huge companies such as Electronic Arts to fund development, have recapabilities of mobile games shooting up.

The Sims FreePlay is an example of an established, reputably aming franchise example in the second it has been notably successful because of the present at base that the below game is an example of the 'freemium' mobile at elements model, where you cannot play for free, but, of course, you are presented in money for the convenience of something. This business model and a true thorny ethical issues surrounding it, ap. 25, 'Microtransaction's

Discussi

- 1) What technical factors may have influenced the rise in mobile gaming?
- 2) What major industrial change in mobile gaming has occurred in the last few ye
- 3) How does the form of mobile gaming influence the content that is produced? compare to The Sims 4?

INSPECTION COPY

COPYRIGHT



3. What makes The Sims unique?

There's not really much else like The Sims franchise, and if you tried to make a similar game now, people would probably say that you're a plagiarist.

As a core premise, it doesn't seem like the sort of thir six would actually be that fun or appealing as a six ne vounave the potential with this amazing new tee' a le to do anything – drive a Ferrari along California sword and a hologram woman who tells you cho word in a possible! But with all this you cho word in the dull parts of real life but OK, you do you.



Maybe The Sims' popularity is in how it speaks to the millennial condition that we'd love to own our own house but, hey, the economy is a dumps to settle for a digital version for the meantime. But really, it's so much more than create something and to almost play God in your own little world.

Social simulation genre

On paper, the notion of a computer simulation of a virtual world of people with dipets, etc. sounds more like a laboratory experiment or the plot of a sci-fi film. But FreePlay, this premise is framed to be a source of entertainment.

In essence, The Sims is a fancier version of when you as a child makin with toy cars and stuffed animals. Perhaps the successful The Sims as a series is hooding to allow us to tap into an inhall of the to play and imagine things.

The Sims' success with the date to the unique and novel nature of the game, and own new gotterns of 'social simulation'. There were a handful of pre-existing idea, but The date helped to truly cement the conventions of the genre, which are

Lack of a player character

This is perhaps the most counterintuitive aspect to The Sims. Instead of inha character within a story, you are in fact more of a godlike force or like a scien You choose what happens, but as the player you don't exist in the world of T

Social relationships as a source of entertainment

In The Sims there is no great battle between the forces of good and evil, no a mythical object to retrieve from a lost Atlantean city, so where does the actu comes from the Sims themselves, and how their lives play out in the world you which...

The ability to create and design

This is a major draw of the series of the game. Unlike a traditional plan attive game where everything has been laid in plan oid. You can build houses, roads, schools, pools, etc. all to oid. You can build houses, roads, schools, pools, etc. all whose personalities and attributes you shape and design. Essentially, you become a producer for a sort of virtual Big-Brother-esque reality show, but with even more meddling.

COPYRIGHT PROTECTED

Zig Zag Education

NSPECTION COPY

Sai

Opt

ins

pat

Different priorities

The Sims is an oddity in the game industry because it seemingly has very different priorities from many big **Triple-A** titles. While many game developers and writers are aiming for ultimate **immersion**, extremely cinematic aesthetics, and graphical verisimilitude that truly puts you in the world of the game (especially with VR tech), The Sims games are more focused on being light-hearted fun.

It's important to counter this with the state of modern cultural industries. For state of modern cultural industries for EA to produce Fre who have a state of modern cultural industries. Not only that have state of modern cultural industries for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale, there is very little risk for EA to produce Fre who have sale in the history of The Sims, over a decade of the sale in the history of The Sims, over a decade of the sale in the history of The Sims, over a decade of the sale in the history of The Sims, over a decade of the sale in the history of The Sims, over a decade of the sale in the history of The Sims, over a decade of the sale in the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The Sims, over a decade of the history of The

Discussion questions

- Why do you think that The Sims, including FreePlay, has no direct competitors simulators? Consider industrial factors.
- 2) Considering the game as a social simulator with human characters, which one gratifications may a player get out of The Sims FreePlay?





INSPECTION COPY



4. Production, distribution and marketing of The S

Series creator Will Wright

The genesis of the original Sims was actually the result of a devastating Californian firestorm that destroyed the house of Will Wright a budding game designer. Instead of ruining his life, which a solutely could have done, it actually gave him the idea for a doll house' where you could create, from the ground with the world replete with homes and people and more of the single with homes and people and more of the single worked for a was the kernel of an excellent idea, but it has been producing his life turned upside down, Wright's vision was shown to the world with the release of The Sims in early 2000. Wright no longer works as the creative director of The Sims franchise, and has been producing other games since 2008, but his role as the series creator is an important part of backstory.



OV

OV

pr

OV

Electronic Arts

Electronic Arts is an absolute behemoth of the industry. In fact, in 2019, EA is the company in the world, and in 2018 alone it generated an approximate revenue of converts to around £2.8 billion). It owns the insanely popular FIFA franchise, Batt whole bunch of stuff that makes the company so wealthy and powerful. The vide modern industries – not just the media – is pretty much dominated by a small har expansive companies, and EA is one of these companies. Consider EA as an equivalent of a major Hollywood studio such as Parary in Pictures or a major television network such as Sky TV.

The four production companies that the envolved in the making of FreePlay were Maxis. Find the studios, Blue Tongue Entertainment (two small- us than companies) and EA Mobile. All four of these production hies are owned by Electronic Arts, which operates both vertical and norizontal ownership models in the gaming industry.

Mobile game development

You're probably switching between reading this and looking at your phone, which is probably either using an iOS or Android operating system. Because these two s mobile games need to have different versions in order to work on both, and this is of companies involved in the development as they may specialise specifically in operating systems.

Mobile games also have **engines**, the fundamental coding and software that the begame are based upon. This is exactly the same as PC and concole products, but or scale, because smartphones are multipurpose objection a scale bunch of functions specialised for one task.

The technical format will discontent of a mobile app compared to a full-sithe size and couple is a game files. For example, The Sims 4 for PC is 10 GB which is a value of the Sims FreePlay. It makes practical sense to going to be sibling to a full game, and more simplistic simply because smar processing power.

INSPECTION COPY



Distribution

The distribution process for selling mobile games is a highly efficient and low-cost company such as EA. Unlike traditional games sold on a cartridge or disk, all a cor file onto the digital marketplace, and pay a fee in order to do this, and they can se accessibility and affordability is why there are so many independent creators post do it for very little expense.

Clay Shirky, a media theorist, has noted how there is wistes and functionality has power to consumers by letting their t

The Sims FreePlay is an example of how the production and distribution methods risk and efficient from a business perspective, especially for a major conglomerate need to be as large, the graphics don't need to be as high definition, and the gameless money and time, and then distributed on a global scale with ease.

Regulation and age-rating

Surprisingly, The Sims FreePlay isn't actually rated E for Everyone, and in fact you game. In terms of actual content, the game is suitable for children, but the issue microtransactions and their potential appeal to children who lon't yet fully under Mobile games aren't yet (in November 2019) regulate and Loard like PEGI in European age ratings are imposed by the App Store of Gogae Play.

Marketing

The Sims File almost every media text released today, makes use of social lot of sens incredibly cheap, you can directly interact with your audience, a swathes of people who scroll through Twitter or Facebook when they're bored or these two outlets, the Facebook page is much more popular than the Twitter accomillion likes (Facebook) compared to around 70k followers (Twitter). Both their two content, about updates to the game or prompts to play a particular quest with a game and a click-through link to an app store or to the EA website.

The interactivity that social media marketing allows is both a blessing and a curse mockery, is publicly and openly displayed in a way that isn't really possible with a For the social media team behind running the FreePlay Twitter and Facebook page could be a source of backlash from users on social media who disagree with the displayers.

Discussion questions

- 1) The Sims speak in their distinctive factorial reinfluenced this creative decision
- 2) Do you think The Total benefited from the App Store / Google Play Store / Google Play Store / 2

INSPECTION COPY



5. The lucrative market of casual gaming (The Sim

Casual versus competitive gamers

Gaming is now a very much a mainstream pursuit, especially among younger audiences, but not everyone is on the same level of investment in and dedication the hobby. For the majority of people, video games are to be ce of sporadic entertainment and they play casually. At the other entertainment and they play casually. At the other entertainment and they play casually are a they play regularly and competitively, and have a some interest in the medium and the industry beyon the and now.

A 'casual ga with a broad appeal in terms of gameplay and subject matter — something that pretty much anyone can get into without needing an interest in a particular genre of game or a certain skill level. A casual game is something you can play by yourself or with some friends, pick up for a few minute and just have a fun time where no one fights anyone, whereas a hardcore game is to be more difficult and to reward playing for longer periods of time.

There also tends to be a split in aesthetics and visual styles between casual and sp games are often brighter, more colourful and less of a focus on a less realistic visual difference between Super Mario Kart – vibrant, cartoony, fun – and Gran Turismo white, realistic-looking car models and scenery, more rewarding for long-term planules on what falls into which category, but there are notable and recognisable trees.

Dedication versus size

So, the trade-off between those two target game is while dedicated gamers on games, equipment, subscriptions. etc. is related the smaller pool of people time-consuming one if you were of the largest good at a particular game. So, from have a choice: do you was a products worth hundreds of pounds to several you want so the largest game. It products worth hundreds of pounds to several you want so the largest game.

If you're trying to sell a console game for £50+, expectations will be high because money to spend on a piece of entertainment. If a £50 game is a mediocre or disa likely to be refunds, backlash from customers, and a negative impact on the sales (see Fallout 76 as an example of a recent catastrophic failure) – but is that going to course not; who has the time to complain about a cheap mobile game? In this economic states the sales are the sales are the sales course not; who has the time to complain about a cheap mobile game?

Is The Sims a casual franchise?

OK, so cool, we've established some basics, but it's time to focus in on The Sims -

On the one hand, the genre and the core premise of building a virtual world with very casual. It has broad appeal, it doesn't have missions or a long-form storyline people of any age really. But, on the other hand, The playing, as the longer you spend building work void and getting your Sims to do can expand your creation.

 NSPECTION COPY



The Sims FreePlay and casual gaming

The Sims is one of the most successful gaming franchises ever made, and The Sims 4 (2013) has become a billion-dollar title thanks to the extreme demand for and consistent popularity of the series. But these larger, full-scale games are designed for PC or consoles, and not everyone has the interest in purchasing a £30 title nor may they have a decent omputer that can run video game graphics smoothly. Currently Sins 4 is available for about £39, with more expansion account of the control of the play, which is instantly more and

DL col ad ve Th the

Whether or Together are series as a whole is casual is a big old debate, but it's har is not a vast. The casual form of the medium, and it would be a fair assertion to FreePlay is a casual game. It's significantly cheaper, it can be played when you've for a train, or wherever, and the game is much lighter compared to its PC/console

Discussion questions

- Why might The Sims FreePlay be described as more casual in nature compared
- 2) Referring to uses and gratifications, what use might a hardcore/hobbyist game casual gamer might not?
- 3) What element of The Sims FreePlay's gameplay could be described as not bein





NSPECTION COPY



6. Microtransactions and DLCs — the ethical issues game design (The Sims FreePlay)

There is no avoiding the issue of microtransactions, one of the most widely detested trends in modern game design, and one that has raised many issues of regulation, and even legality. In a few unknown term has fast become a byword for exposite business tactics in the video game industry. These game transactions where you can pay for something out that money, a new weapon or a character skin – but a larger **DLC** pack, you pay smaller amounts of the name.

conter add-or vehicle These the ba

On the surface, it seems like a pretty fair and understandable option, but some macriticised for being unfair to their customers. Consumers, commentators and governmentators and concerns about the gaming industry's increasing focus on incorporand loot boxes into their products.

The problems with microtransactions

In mobile games, which are often free or pretty cheap to purchase, microtransact expected – either that or you have un-skippable ads pop up every so often that yo get if you paid for the game – so it's not too unsurprising in this segment of the in

But the problems are the same; microtransactions prey upon the desire that many o which is to reach a goal by the path of least resistance. If you want to achieve somet game and your options are to grind away for hours and hours or to pay a small fee to immediately, then what's the problem with that? It's an even choice with two fair of

But the world is not so straightforward or balance and here there is money to there is exploitation. We can never know to tree at who's to say that the game make the free avenue much more to simply for the convenience and upfront to simply to but then have my my me methods of trying to crowbar open your wallet?

Another aspuly microtransactions are so widely reviled by the general publiawmakers/guernments, but we'll get to that) is how often they entice children in of money through the promise of quick success. It's bad enough for teenagers and have no real perception of money as a concept, these in-game microtransactions of

Why is this relevant to The Sims FreePlay?

It's relevant because The Sims FreePlay has microtransactions in it! Surprise, surprise page tangent — it's a relevant point. In the game, which is admittedly the free vergame, you can earn 'SimCash' through quests/activities in-game, or you can chuck and get some instantly, exactly the same mechanics for pretty much any microtral

In this game, however, it is more controversial simply because of the company the More commonly known as EA, this giant of the video game world has garnered a for a number of questionable business practices. Most receively, and most infamo misuse) of microtransactions, such as the huge users to driving listic backlash again Star Wars Battlefront 2, a game which already produced £50 to begin with means the only mobile game with minimum and such as a limit of the company that we will be a such as a such

Discuss 4% le Lions

- 1) What leducated microtransactions in games, especially mobile games, raise in re
- 2) Give a point for and a point against the statement 'Microtransactions are an ex
 - a. For
 - b. Against
- 3) What aspects of The Sims FreePlay's gameplay might encourage players to ma

ISPECTION COPY



7. Pocket-sized universe — postmodernism and reprof reality in The Sims FreePlay

Oh boy! Postmodernism and The Sims – where to start? A digital simulation that resembles the real world filled with little people whose lives you can control is definitely for postmodern analysis.

Simulacra

Like the an test of gods and goddesses without the 'essence subject matter that was the origin of the term, a Sim could absolutely be described as a **simulacrum**. It is a tiny 3D model of a human, with a virtual personality performing actions and tasks, but with no humanity or autonomy of its own. Equally, the same could be said for all of the models of buildings, animals, plants and other items that exist in our real world but are being replicated in the world of The Sims FreePlay, but the Sims themselves are perhaps the most obvious and complex examples of **simulacra** in the game.



Simulacrum – the simulacra – an in without the inhe original thing the

Hyperreality

Umberto Eco, a postmodernist theorist and author, referred to Disneyland as a pl worlds of the 'real' and the imaginary overlap. But hyperreality doesn't refer only such as those you'd find at a theme park; it can also refer to be ledia texts. On a viswith imagery that is recognisable but stylised. A rocal harhouse in the game is becomes hyperreal in the way in which the station makes it appear more real

Implosion

Media and society are inextricably linked (whether that's a good thing or won't get in society, and this is the postmodernist notion of **implosion**. The Sims content and gameplay that are utterly integral to the text are all rooted in real life mundane parts of it. Recently, there was a 'Barista' update to the game where yo it with all the assorted props and people in your virtual society. With all the unlime escapism that computer technology and games could offer, some people just want coffee shop.

The Sims doesn't explicitly make intertextual references to wider society or existing draws upon the imagery and mechanics of our society and our world that we see social simulation, The Sims FreePlay is a strong example of the breaking down of the constructed and the real.

Representation of reality

Where The Sims differs wildly from control of the Sims and other media in general characters' made by the decorate. The Sims, the diversity of the Sims in you you design them but the service options for the service options for the service options for the service of Sims, including racial identity, sexuality, age and psychological entrements such as personality traits, likes and dislikes, particular ability of the service options for t

SPECTION COPY



As a version of 'reality', The Sims is a heightened, comical and playful reflection of modern life in a colourful, cartoonish world. The game developers aren't aiming for verisimilitude in the visuals or in the quests and actions - aspects of the real world that are dark, miserable and depressing don't make it in because why would anyone want to play a simulation of the same thing they tread through every day?

Discussion questions

- The Sims FreePlav (A) and atted to include virtual reality (VR) capability postry is: ! does VR relate to?
 Why the street having written characters al
- 2) t having written characters alter how social groups are represente
- How near the fact that the Sims speak in 'Simlish' be disguised as a simulacru 3)







8. Why do people play video games?

This is always a good question; with anything, it always comes back to 'why?' Except for eating, sleeping, reproducing, avoiding getting eaten by wolves, and all the other autopilot stuff we do so we don't die, everything else humans do can be questioned and dissected. So why do we play video games?

Entertainment

'Why do people play raise it's fun,
Socrates — ot is seep question. Then again, we probably do go more in-depth because if you write that as an answer in an exam, you'll probably get a terrible grade, so get the scuba gear on because it's time to descend.

For a start, games can be seen as a form of task. Once you complete a task, you n dopamine and other feel-good hormones as a reward for achieving something. U something is satisfying and rewards you in this way, you're going to keep doing it psychological and emotional level, you feel as if you've achieved something – posityou to carry on doing what you are doing.

Gaming is often rewarding on that very basic psychological and neurological level, things you do in games are just fun and exciting. You don't do paperwork or vacuthings, drive impossibly fast, fight dragons or whatever.

Escapism

A protagonist in a film is normally a char consigned to be relatable to the view part of the 'escapism' aspect. Ye ed a new can take this to the next level of immedictional world.

- Charac 79 at 3 you can model the character on yourself, or create a whole 100 dentity of who you want to be
- NPCs directly address you and the narratives revolve specifically around you and your actions as the player character

Equally, when you play a video game you become more than an audience member consuming a text, you are taking on a role within the story. Life will beat you over from time to time, so being able to take a break by exploring some virtual world a valuable, and a way to de-stress.

Education

This one is lower down on the list because video games are an overwhelmingly for are very few games that are factual or learning-based apart om ones designed for However, while you might not be learning facts are found from playing video gar some mental and physical skills and abilities the control of the

- puzzle-solving and lateral thi 3
- response and reaction of actions
- fine mail sing controllers

Identity

Another important aspect is forming an identity through video games. There's a repopular term, even if it's been mocked and satirised a lot recently in Internet cultupeople place a lot of stock in gaming as a part of their personality and their social

INSPECTION COPY

COPYRIGHT



You might be someone who plays online regularly, and you might talk to people in wouldn't have met in real life – maybe even establishing a friendship online throu Equally, real-world friendships may be strengthened through discussing and playing the strengthened through discussing the strengthened through discussing the strengthened through the strengthene

Real-world competition

E-sports, just like regular sports but with more... 'e'? Even the ugh e-sports (comp pursuit, competitions and tournaments are just as figure 1 to 1 and widely water sports. If you're dedicated enough, and you have a membuprofen gel handy to fe you could become a world-class plant.

South Kore crucible of today's e-sports, the gamer promised land, where the Energy and compared single seat is a gaming chair, and the country treats it as a very requivalent to becoming an athlete or a football player. The racing game franchise competition in conjunction with Nissan to find the fastest virtual race driver on the skills could transfer over to a real-world circuit. Called GT Academy, the inaugural broadcast on TV as a series and proved to be a hit. Some of the winners of the shiph-level motorsports, all because of a computer game.

So, being really, insanely good at a video game might not be a waste of time at all potentially be a viable career, or even help you with a rare real-world opportunity only is it good for the players, but there are millions of people who enjoy watching YouTube/Twitch streamers, just as plenty of people enjoy watch football or racing

Prioritising positive emotions

Broadly speaking, emotional response – particularly enity is the primary reason people play video games, and 'entropy capanding knowledge is either a secondary reason in the priority. This is a generalisation, and of course in the capanding to be 100% an unbroken rule, but it is an observation of video games.

response is often skewed towards positivity and happiness. You might binge-watch a comedy series, but chances are you probably wouldn't binge-watch a docuseries about homelessness because experiencing an onslaught of negative feelings is intense, and, frankly, it sucks. A fiction film can explore deeply distressing and upsetting topics because it ends after a certain time, and you can go away and process those feelings.

But games don't end, not in the same manner as a television programme or a movie developers to keep audiences engaged with their game for long periods of time. If feel rubbish, they're not going to keep using it, and then you're going to lose a ton of

Discussion questions

- 1) What could be an audience use or gratific tic for the Sims FreePlay?
- 2) Do you think the audience's reaction for juding a video game are different from and, if so, what are there is eranged.
- 3) Why might vide to be described as a more exclusionary form of media for

SPECTION COPY

COPYRIGHT

Zig Zag Education

Canon

in a me

to be ir

instanc

of the

Emotio

of bein

and/or

though

9. How are video games made?

Any form of media requires a lot of graft and hard work to get it made, and video most technologically intense forms. For clarity, we're not talking about the ins an studios and all that corporate noise, we're talking about the craft, bro.

Once you've got an idea together and all the #deer a sec tation is over, you have to take off your artist beret and put or "our virther hard hat to get a decent product together. If your idea are the garbage. Once he came up with his place for a lichelangelo then had to hammer the hell out of a 17. The or scone for years to get it done.

Unless you're an enthusiast, it can seem difficult to grasp how video games are made. If you want to make a film but you've got no money, you can borrow someone's DSLR or shoot it on your iPhone. If you have dreams of making cash from rapping or singing or playing guitar, you can get a cheap microphone and make a start towards that. But if you want to go about making a video game, how the hell do you get started?

Production process

Like film or television, game design is **multidisciplinary**, meaning that it requires a areas of tech to come together to produce one complete piece of media. The list guide to how to make a game, but is instead just an insight into the various elements.

- Writing video games are highly scripted affairs, and the writing process for the first steps on the road to a finished product.
- Voice acting and/or motion capture Ok so where got the script now you motion-capture performances for the structure.
- been originally in a specifically for the game to create mood, drive action identity game. The Nordic-inspired chanting of The Elder Scrolls V: Sky atmosp of the beat-driven bass-heavy music used in the Call of Du action, warfare and rage.
- Modelling and texturing these are the processes of making the virtual envi objects for the game, as well as then adding the textures, colours, lighting, she visual elements.
- Play-testing / beta builds you've got to make sure that what you've made if you've also got to make sure that buyers aren't going to hate it. So, what do yideo game designer, you do what's called beta-testing. You pay a group of your product to see what they like, what they hate, and what they think could build. This can be a great way to polish a promising-looking game, or even he screw-up.

Artistry or childish games?

Are video games art or not? I don't have to this one – in fact, nobody opinion. But it is a debate that a since probably keep raging an interview of the sun swallows up the Earth.

In the early Tetris, Pacman, Galaga and the iconic neon arcades of the eight pressed to argue that these were on the same playing field artistically as cinema but these were just the beginnings.

But now that the technology has developed so much, the scope of modern games aesthetics is definitely on a par with that of other media.

INSPECTION COPY



Costs and expenses

The frustrating aspect about trying to make any media or artwork is the inevitable producing it, and a major aspect is the technology you need. There are some form cheap – you can write a script for next to nothing, you can buy a decent microphovery little money. You could even make a short film on a microbudget, and you callevel of quality if the creativity and dedication are there. But naking a game, espean expensive endeavour. There are small developers and prilliant games for expensive endeavour. There are small developers and prilliant games for expensive are, but, as for film or television, you read a place deep, deep pockets to provide the product expeans since launch (get bod). The product expeans since launch (get bod). The product expeans since launch (get bod).

Discussion

- 1) Video games are expensive to develop and produce why is this? Try to give elements of production in your answer.
- Why might a game such as Metroid Prime 2: Echoes have been more expensive The Sims Mobile?
- 3) Referring to Hesmondhalgh's theories on cultural industries, what do multimill indicate about the nature of the mainstream video game industry?





INSPECTION COPY



Show What You Know

- Compared to other forms of fictional narrative media, such as a television set the major differences between how video games such as The Sims FreePlay to Consider structure, character archetypes, and the differences attribut
- 2) How does The Sims FreePlay relate to the simulation of the simulation of the Sims FreePlay relate to the simulation of the simulation of the Sims FreePlay relate to the simulation of the simulation of the Sims FreePlay relate to the Sims FreePlay relate to the Sims FreePlay related to the Sims FreePlay relat
- 3) As a fo production and distribution utilise technology, and how do video games comof media texts?
- 4) There has been an ongoing debate over whether video games cause violence against the statement that 'video games cause violence', referring specifically to audience theories.



NSPECTION COPY

INSPECTION COPY

COPYRIGHT



Answers

1. 'The Sims' audience breakdown and cultural legacy

- 1) A difference in psychographics might be how much of counterest the players players of FreePlay are likely to be much more of survival whereas players of The because the game is much larger and lower.
- 2) The fact that the audience is to be will towards female, instead of being
- 3) Content that is mature or niche is likely to limit commercial success broad against

2. A histor mobile games - the reborn medium

- Phone displays have become larger and have higher definitions to cope with Internet networks have become faster and more versatile for online gameple
- A major industrial change has been existing franchises such as The Sims expa console and PC to having mobile versions as well.
- 3) Mobile games are much smaller in size and complexity because of the limited of phones – they may have less functionality and game content simply because no longer operated by a controller or keyboard, but by the touchscreen instern

3. What makes The Sims unique?

- 1) Electronic Arts is a major conglomerate with a large amount of power any care likely to be met with copyright claims from EA's legal team.
- 2) A player may experience escapism through being a co-simulate their own and shape the lives of the Sims in a way they with an events of the game.

4. Production distribution and marketing of The Sims FreePlay

- 1) By havi constructed language, EA avactors in a variety of languages.
- The Sims FreePlay has benefited because the game has been very well receive are relatively high, there are large numbers of user reviews, and the majority positive the games downloads have probably been helped by this.

5. The lucrative market of casual gaming

- Because FreePlay is a mobile game, it requires much less investment both of played on the go instead of at home.
- 2) A hardcore gamer might use video gaming for the purpose of forming an ider themselves as a gamer or form social bonds with other players through the to do this.
- 3) The fact that The Sims FreePlay allows you to to build your world, instead of being a read aone' game where your program.

6. Microtransactions 700 the ethical issues surrounding modern g

- 1) Microt To tic 1 raise the issue that game companies are potentially taking especial education the popularity of mobile games with younger audiences.
- 2) Exploitative tactic for and against:
 - a. For microtransactions are often in games targeted at younger children value of money; equally, developers may make games more difficult so to skip ahead.

NSPECTION COPY



- Against microtransactions are shortcuts, and people can still achieve to game for more time. They have the choice whether to buy or not.
- The Sims FreePlay's gameplay requires long periods of time to achieve things ahead could become an appealing prospect.

7. Pocket-sized universe – postmodernism and representation of reality

- 1) Virtual reality is an example of hyperreality who are digital simulation direct physical existence.
- 2) Having no written characters to how groups of social groups being represented three their Simon
- 3) Simlist 709 a described as a simulacrum of real languages, as it expresses words a described as a simulacrum of real language but with nor

8. Why do people play video games?

- These are example answers, as there can be many applicable uses and gratifi
 reasoning and explanation.
 - Escapism because of the fantasy setting and the heroic player character
 - Entertainment the portable nature of the game means it could be used e.g. on public transport.
 - Entertainment long-form story combined with the exciting nature of t
- 2) People might play a game for social reasons; people may play games more for emotional reasons, as they would when they watch a film; they may play games shorter periods of time than the time spent watching a film, which tends to have two hours.
- 3) Video games could be described as being exc' in to new audiences because and you can be bad at playing a vide and a could be described as being exc' in to new audiences because you can be bad at playing a vide and a could be of the country of the playing a vide and a could be described as being exc' in the new audiences because you can be bad at playing a vide as a could be described as being exc' in the new audiences because you can be bad at playing a vide as a could be described as being exc' in the new audiences because you can be bad at playing a vide as a could be described as being exc' in the new audiences because you can be bad at playing a vide as a could be described as being exc' in the new audiences because you can be bad at playing a vide as a could be described as a cou

9. How ar o hade?

- 1) The processor of making a video game is multidisciplinary and requires a numb as voice acting, music recording, motion capture, 3D modelling, texturing, co
- 2) Metroid Prime 2: Echoes was made in 2004, when computer technology wou and much more expensive than the same technology needed to develop a magnetic Sims FreePlay. Equally, Prime 2 is a full console game, which would have take develop and produce.
- 3) The huge budgets of mainstream games indicate the fact that the video game commercialised and that these development companies are ultimately run for their money back and then some in order to survive.

Show What You Know

- 1) Narratology comparison between film/televir ar a fideo games.
 - a. Character archetypes are similar in that conventional media and vio
 - i. Video gam they more heightened in the moral divide between the interval have to often actively fight the villain.
 - ii. The and television often have more moral ambiguity in their hero commanded and conflicted, whereas game heroes are the audience su clear-cut.
 - b. Narrative structures are different because of the media form.
 - Many video games have a set storyline, but many also have open no action affects the ending.

NSPECTION COPY

COPYRIGHT



The Sims FreePlay has even less of a narrative structure because it is character in the story.

- c. Stories in film and television are often much shorter and fixed due to the
- Game stories have similar narrative arcs and result in a final climactic en much longer.
- The Sims FreePlay with regard to genre.
 - a. The genre is social simulation.
 - b. The conventions exhibited in The Specific Play are lack of a player char create a virtual world. the conventions exhibited in The Specific Play are lack of a player char create a virtual world. The conventions exhibited in The Specific Play are lack of a player char create a virtual world. The conventions exhibited in The Specific Play are lack of a player char create a virtual world.
 - c. The expression to the genre conventions closely, even though social in the industry.
- 3) How video games utilise technology compared to other media forms.
 - i. Video games are wholly reliant upon technology as they couldn't exist w
 - The production process relies upon technology including coding, physics animation, sound and dialogue recording.
 - iii. Distribution relies upon customers owning the hardware (PC, consoles, pare either physical copies or online digital marketplaces and downloads.
 - iv. Compared to conventional forms of media, video games are the most re television predominantly use human actors and real-world settings/loca with added VFX, whereas 100% of video game visual content has been g
- 4) Video games cause violence for and against argument.
 - a. FOR
 - i. Video games often use violence as a mair on ponent of their cont
 - ii. Unlike in many films and television or names, there is little focus real-world ramifications of the lence.
 - iii. Unlike pre-reco a 1 m, a.a., you as the player are actually choosing notential. The amaging psychologically.
 - iv 79 dt is media effects study on the aggression of children expose
 - b. AGAINST
 - Video game violence is often far less visually graphic than film viole obviously unreal.
 - Many video game enemies are not human.
 - Many films and television programmes display violence in a similar has never been a concrete link between consumption of media and
 - iv. The Bandura media effects theory has been criticised for being over both small in scale and solely focused on young children.



INSPECTION COPY

